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COMPLAINT AND JURY DEMAND
Plaintiff Robert D. Delee (DeLee), by the undersigned attorneys, alleges as follows:
INTRODUCTION
This 1s a civil action brought pursuant to the Uniformed Services Employment and
Reemployment Rights Act of 1994, 38 U.S.C. §§ 4301-4335 (USERRA).
JURISDICTION AND VENUE
This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to 38 U.S.C.
§ 4323(b).
Venue is proper in this district under 28 U.S.C. §1391(b)(2) because “a substantial part of
the events or omissions giving rise to [plamtiff’s] claim occurred” in this judicial district.
PARTIES
Plaintiff Delee resides in Marshall County, Indiana. Marshall County, Indiana is within
the jurisdiction of this Court.
Defendant City of Plymouth, Indiana (Plymouth) is a municipal government entity within

the territorial and subject matter jurisdiction of this Court.
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CLAIM FOR RELIEF
DeLee has worked for Plymouth as a Patrolman in the Police Department since on or
about April 19, 1999.
Orainance No. 2010-2009 of the City of Plymouth, adopted on August 23, 2010,
continued Plymouth’s policy that police officers for Plymouth are entitled to longevity
pay on the anniversary date of their employment of $225 per year of service up to a
maximum of $4,500.
Pursuant to Ordinance No. 1480 of the City of Plymouth adopted on November 13, 1989,
longevity pay “has long been recognized as an incentive for police and firemen to remain
in the service of the City.”
DelLee has served in the United States Air Force Reserve (Air Force Reserve) since on or
about July 7, 1997, and currently holds the rank of Technical Sergeant.
On April 20, 2010, Delee received the full amount of longevity pay to which he was
entitled of $2,475 based on 11 years of continuous employment up to that date.
DelLee was mobilized for active duty beginning on September 1, 2010 and concluding on
May 11, 2011. Del.ee worked full time as a Patrolman for Plymouth both before and
after his active duty deployment for the Air Force Reserve between September 1, 2010
and May 11, 2011.
Del ee notified Plymouth prior to his deployment on September 1, 2010, and at that time
Plymouth paid Delee a prorated amount of longevity pay of $900 for the four months he
had worked for Plymouth since the anniversary date of his employment on

April 19, 2010. As of the date this Complaint was filed, Plymouth has not paid, and has
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continued to refuse to pay, DeLee longevity pay of $1,800 for the eight month period he
was deployed. On the fourth page of a letter dated December 19, 2011, Plymouth’s City
Attorney admitted that Plymouth would have paid Delee the additional $1,800 of
longevity pay if DeLee had not been mobilized for active duty with the Air Force Reserve
between September 1, 2010 and May 11, 2011.

Pursuant to USERRA, 38 U.S.C. § 4316(a), a person in a uniformed service, which
includes the Air Force Reserve, “is entitled to the seniority and other rights and benefits
determined by seniority that the person had on the date of the commencement of service
in the uniformed services plus the additional seniority and rights and benefits that such
person would have attained if the person had remained continuously employed.”
Longevity pay that Plymouth provides to its police officers is a “right and benefit
determined by seniority.”

Defendant Plymouth violated USERRA, § 4316(a) by refusing to pay DeLee longevity
pay, which is a seniority-based benefit of employment to which he otherwise would have
been entitled but for his deployment by the Air Force Reserve, for his eight month period
of active service between September 1, 2010 and May 11, 2011.

Plymouth’s violation of USERRA § 4316(a), as described in the preceding paragraph,

was willful.

(OS]
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REQUEST FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Delee requests that the Court enter judgment against Plymouth as

follows:

Al

Declare that Plymouth's denial of a seniority-based benefit of employment to Delee
because he fulfilled a service obligation was unlawful and violated USERRA, 38 U.S.C.
§ 4316(a);

Declare that Plymouth’s violations of 38 U.S.C. § 4316(a) were willful pursuant to
USERRA, 38 U.S.C. § 4323(d)(1)(C);

Require that Plymouth fully comply with USERRA by paying Del.ee longevity pay for
the time he was fulfilling his service obligation, and liquidated damages pursuant to

38§ U.S.C. § 4323(d)(1)(C) for Plymouth’s willful violation of USERRA;

Enjoin Plymouth from taking any action against Delee that fails to comply with the
provisions of USERRA;

Award DeLee prejudgment interest on the amount of lost benefits found due; and

Grant such other and further relief that is just and proper.
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JURY BEMAND

Plaintiff demands a jury trial on all issues so triable.

Respectfully submitted,

THOMAS E. PEREZ
Assistant Attorney General
Civil Rights Division

fLL S

DELORA KENN REW

Chief, Employment Litigation Section
Civil Rights Division

United States Department of Justice

JODIB. DANIS
Special Counsel
Employment Litigation Section

Counsel for Plaintiff Robert D. Delee

DAVID CAPP
United States Attorney
Northern District of Indiana

(Waipes o~ CBIE

WAYNE T. AULT

Assistant United States Attorney

5400 Federal Plaza, Suite 1500
Hammond, Indiana 46320

Telephone: 219-937-5500

Telecopy: 219-852-2770

Internet Address: wayne.ault(@usdoj.gov
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